
* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, October 19, 2017, 5:30 P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

CALL TO ORDER:

 5:30 P.M. WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

1. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

2. Hold a discussion regarding standing water in the City of Corinth.

3. Discus transfer of 0.4 acre drainage tract from Denton ISD.

4. Discuss water and wastewater rates.

ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION

*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City Hall
located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:

7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE:
"Honor the Texas Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".

PROCLAMATION:

Proclamation proclaiming October as "National Domestic Violence Awareness Month".

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on minutes from the August 24, 2017 Workshop Session.

1



2. Consider and act on minutes from the August 24, 2017 Special Session.

3. Consider and act on Second Lease Renewal for Fire House #1 between Corinth and the City of Lake Dallas

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than
factual responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be
limited to 3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may
be taken into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you
desire to address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual member thereof. Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City
of Corinth.

BUSINESS AGENDA

4. Consider and act on nominations, appointments, resignations and removal of members from Corinth
Economic Development Corporation,

5. Consider and act on the trail system land dedication for the property located on 55.995 acres all or
portions of property legally described Tracts 1C and 1D out of the BBB & CRR Survey, County Abstract
190, Tract 1 out of the S Kephart Survey, County Abstract 721 and Tract 1D out of the GW McGlothlin
Survey, County Abstract 888 in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas.  This property is located on
the south of proposed Lake Sharon Drive extension and east of FM 2499.

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the
above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation;
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

2



a. Deliberations regarding economic development incentives to a business prospect.

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS.

6. Consider and act on a Chapter 380 Economic Development Incentive Agreement between the City of
Corinth, Texas, the Corinth Economic Development Corporation and 6Q Hospitality, L.L.C. to construct
and operate a hotel and conference center in the City of Corinth, Texas.

ADJOURN:

Posted this _____ day of ________, 2017 at _____ on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

3

13 October 11:30 

Kimberly Pence



   
    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: Council Member Don Glockel Agenda Request for Standing Water
Submitted For: Fred Gibbs, Director  Submitted By: Fred Gibbs, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Hold a discussion regarding standing water in the City of Corinth.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Council Member Don Glockel requested this item to be on a future City Council meeting regarding standing water
in the City Corinth.

RECOMMENDATION
None

4



   
    PROCLAMATION           

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: Proclamation
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Proclamation proclaiming October as "National Domestic Violence Awareness Month".

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
October is National Domestic Violence Awareness Month. 1 in 4 women are victims of domestic violence, this is an
opportunity to demonstrate awareness in ending domestic violence and to support the numerous victims who are
among us. Moreover, it is a wonderful opportunity to educate the public and students on the seriousness of domestic
violence and the prevalence of this epidemic in our lives.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

Attachments
Proclamation 

5



PROCLAMATION

NATIONAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH

WHEREAS, for the past thirty-seven years, Denton County Friends of the Family has
provided compassionate, comprehensive services those impacted by rape, 
sexual abuse, and domestic violence in the Denton community while 
partnering with the community to promote safety, hope, healing, justice, and 
prevention; and

WHEREAS, by working together, shelters, affiliated programs, municipalities, and
concerned individuals can change social attitudes about, and the response 
to, intimate partner violence; and

WHEREAS, all persons have the right to live without fear, abuse, or oppression; and

WHEREAS, one in three Texans will experience domestic violence in their lifetimes and

WHEREAS, Denton County Friends of the Family received more than 3,000 crisis calls
from victims of domestic violence and provided 7,801 days of emergency 
shelter to women and children in the past year; and

WHEREAS, the Denton County Friends of the Family individuals and groups with over
10,000 hours of services through counseling, advocacy, case management 
and support services; and

WHEREAS, domestic violence is not confined to any specific group or people, but
affects people of all races, backgrounds, economic levels, education levels, 
family structures, ages and religions; and

WHEREAS, the crime of domestic violence violates members of our community’s
privacy, dignity, security and humanity in the form of physical, emotional, 
sexual, psychological, religious, and economic abuse; and

WHEREAS, advocates, professionals, volunteers and community members concerned
with domestic violence will devote the month of October to raising awareness 
about the causes, interventions and prevention of this devastating crime;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the official seal of the City of 
Corinth, Texas to be affixed this the ______ day of _______________________, 2017.

_____________________________________
Bill Heidemann, Mayor

6



   
    CONSENT ITEM    1.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: August 24, 2017 Workshop Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 24, 2017 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 24, 2017 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 24, 2017 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

7



STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF DENTON
CITY OF CORINTH

On this the 24th day of August 2017 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in a Workshop
Session at the Corinth City Hall at 6:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting 
date, time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit:

Members Present:
Bill Heidemann, Mayor
Joe Harrison, Mayor Pro-Tem
Sam Burke, Council Member
Lowell Johnson, Council Member
Don Glockel, Council Member
Scott Garber, Council Member

Staff Members Present:
Bob Hart, City Manager
Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance Director
Chris Rodriquez, Finance Manager
Angie Watson, Utility Billing Supervisor
Cody Collier, Public Works Director
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police
Greg Wilkerson, Asst. Chief of Police
Tim Dial, Corinth Police Officer
Randy Robinson, Sergeant of Police 
Curtis Birt, Fire Chief
Chad Thiessen, Deputy Fire Chief
Brandon Shepard, Deputy Fire Chief
Kim Pence, City Secretary
Cleve Joiner, Building Official
Barbara Cubbage, Planning Manager
Lori Levy, Senior Planner
Brenton Copeland, Assistant Manager, Technology Services
Mike Brownlee, City Engineer
Mack Reinwand, City Attorney

Others Present:
Nelisa Heddin, Nelisa Heddin Consultant, L.L.P

CALL TO ORDER:
Mayor Heidemann called the Workshop meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

1. Discuss Special Meeting Items on Special Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed 
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

Item #9 Discussion

9. Receive a presentation, consider and act upon approving a contract with SPI Asphalt to apply a fog 

8



seal application to Corinth's asphalt roads.

Councilmember Johnson - why is there an $85,000 difference in the bids? It seems to be a huge 
spread.

Cody Collier, Public Works Director - the reason for that is the company chose to bid on a product 
that we do not need at this time. 

Item #12 Discussion

12. Consider an act on a Chapter 380 Agreement between the City of Corinth and Swisher @ I-35 
Corinth, LP for Gateway Signage into the City.

Councilmember Johnson - would like to go into Closed Session on this item to discuss.

Item #13 Discussion

13. Consider and act on an Ordinance Amending the Corinth Code of Ordinances, Chapters 93 and 150, 
Adopting the 2015 International Construction Codes With Certain Appendices and Local 

Amendments and Standards, Including the Building Code; Residential Building Code; Plumbing 
Code; Fuel Gas Code; Mechanical Code; Energy Code; Existing Building Code; Fire Code; Property 
Maintenance Code; and 2014 National Electrical Code.

Councilmember Johnson - Is this addition or change in where we were going originally concerning 
the Fire Code?

Bob Hart, City Manager - that particular item is addressed in the Building Code so it is covered in 
there. 

Mack Reinwand, City Attorney - We want to avoid any conflict with Fire Codes so if you do 
approve this tonight just make it clear that you are including this amendment to the Fire Code.

Item #14 Discussion

14. Consider and act on revisions to the Wireless Services (Small Cells) Design Manual.

Mayor Heidemann - What is the final outcome from Austin in this last session on this area? Has 
anything changed from where we started?

Bob Hart, City Manager - it has not changed any but we need to have all of these in place by 
September 1st. 

Mack Reinwand, City Attorney - we have already put a lot of this in place. When the final version 
went through there were a couple of amendments so we are making sure that we are covered on those 
amendments that went through.

Mayor Heidemann recessed the Workshop at 6:15 p.m. *See Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of 
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code.

9



Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with 
chapter 551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with 
a third person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to 
a business prospect.

Council met in Closed Session from 6:18 P.M. until 6:45 P.M.

a. Chapter 380 Agreement Negotiations

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS.

There was no action taken from Closed Session. 

Mayor Heidemann recessed the Workshop at 6:47 P.M. to go into the regularly scheduled meeting at 
7:00 P.M.

Mayor Heidemann reconvened the Workshop at 7:46 P.M.

2. Review utility rate options and recap proposed budget.

Bob Hart, City Manager - Nelisa Heddin has looked at some of the variations that you asked about 
from last week and that is what we have before you tonight. We looked at the characteristics of 
various water providers within the Upper Trinity system. We looked at water supply sources and we 
are one of the very few systems that are relying 100% on Upper Trinity for all of our water supply 

and others are supplementing with wells and other supply sources. 

We have looked at 50% and 60% cost recovery. For a senior the bill would go up to $84.36 and that 
is reflective of a base cost and in the base cost you get 3,000 gallons of water included. They are not 

paying for the first 3,000 gallons of water. Which means for seniors their bill would increase from 
$72.66 per month that you have today to $84.36 increase of $11.70. Then you have different 
consumption levels of 5,000, 10,000, 20,000 and 30,000 and so forth.  

10



Nelisa Heddin, Nelisa Heddin Consulting, Inc. - we have added some lower rate tiers so your 
current tiers start at $2.77 for 0-10,000 gallons and what we have done is broken that out a little more and 
went from 0-3,000 gallons at $1.77, 3,000-5,000 at $2.77, and 5,000-10,000 at $3.27. Above 10,000 
gallons you see a greater jump to $6.24. A senior citizen using 5,000 gallons of water does see a 
change in their volumetric charge they only see the change in their base fee.

11



Nelisa Heddin, Nelisa Heddin Consulting, L.L.P - if you were to go with the 60% base fee the volumetric 
charge for 0-3,000 gallons would go from $2.77 to $1.27, 3,000 - 5,000 would go to $2.27 and 5,000 -
10,000 to $2.77.

Councilmember Garber - our seniors are going to see a 16% increase and the over 20,000 gallon folks and 
that is my concern. I don't want it to feel to our seniors that we are taking something from them.

Nelisa Heddin, Nelisa Heddin Consulting, L.L.C - we could correct that by basically tweaking the 
volumetric charge and I would recommend get rid of your 0-3,000 gallon tier and be 0-5,000 gallon tier 

12



because you seniors get that for free and that is what's causing that .50 cent difference. So essentially from 0-
5,000 gallons it would be about $2.33. You would still leave the first 3,000 gallons free for the seniors but 
that $2.77 would come down.

If you change the option where essentially your tier for residential customers your tier for 0-5,000 gallons at 
$2.33, 5,000 - 10,000 gallons would be $2.83 and then 10,000 - 25,000 gallons would still be at the $6.24, 
$9.21 and the $12.18 would stay the same. If you were to go to that tier for a residential customer who uses 
10,000 gallons of water and 5,000 gallons of sewer their bill would go from the current $100.36 to $108.85 
which would be an $8.49 increase. The seniors would go from $92.05 using 10,000 gallons of water and 
5,000 gallons of sewer to $101.86 which would be a $9.81 increase. 

There is still a slight differential, 10.65% for seniors and 8.50% for residential but we can keep driving that 
number to get it to be the same percent difference between the two. 

Nelisa Heddin posted her spread sheet on the projector for discussion. 

Nelisa Heddin, Nelisa Heddin Consulting, L.L.P - Essentially what we want to do is manipulate the 
numbers to get to the revenue that we want to achieve.

The consensus of the Council is to use the 50% base rate go back and work those numbers to get it revenue 
neutral and to get the difference between the senior using 10,000 gallons of water and the regular citizen 
using 10,000 gallons of water to a percentage as close as possible and come back to staff next week for 
discussion.   

ADJOURN:

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 9:05p.m.

AYES: All

Meeting adjourned.

Approved by Council on the day of 2017.

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

13



   
    CONSENT ITEM    2.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: August 24, 2017 Special Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the August 24, 2017 Special Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the August 24, 2017 Special Session. The minutes are in draft form and not considered
official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the August 24, 2017 Special Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

14



STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF DENTON
CITY OF CORINTH

On this the 24th day of August 2017 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in a Special Session 
at the Corinth City Hall at 7:00 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, 
time, place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit:

Members Present:
Bill Heidemann, Mayor
Joe Harrison, Mayor Pro-Tem
Sam Burke, Council Member
Lowell Johnson, Council Member
Don Glockel, Council Member
Scott Garber, Council Member

Staff Members Present:
Bob Hart, City Manager
Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Finance Director
Chris Rodriquez, Finance Manager
Angie Watson, Utility Billing Supervisor
Cody Collier, Public Works Director
Jason Alexander, Economic Development Corporation Director
Debra Walthall, Chief of Police
Greg Wilkerson, Asst. Chief of Police
Tim Dial, Corinth Police Officer
Randy Robinson, Sergeant of Police 
Curtis Birt, Fire Chief
Chad Thiessen, Deputy Fire Chief
Brandon Shepard, Deputy Fire Chief
Kim Pence, City Secretary
Cleve Joiner, Building Official
Barbara Cubbage, Planning Manager
Lori Levy, Senior Planner
Brenton Copeland, Assistant Manager, Technology Services
Mike Brownlee, City Engineer
Mack Reinwand, City Attorney

Others Present:
Nelisa Heddin, Nelisa Heddin Consultant, L.L.P

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & TEXAS PLEDGE: "Honor the Texas 
Flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible".

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M., Councilmember Garber delivered the invocation 
and led in the Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Flag.

15



CONSENT AGENDA

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion. Should the 
Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on minutes from the June 15, 2017 Workshop Session.

2. Consider and act on minutes from the June 15, 2017 Regular Session.

3. Consider and act on Minutes from the July 6, 2017 Workshop Session.

4. Consider and act on minutes from the July 6, 2017 Regular Session.

5. Consider and act on a Resolution approving the "DRAFT" Denco Area 9-1-1 District Fiscal Year 2018 
Financial Plan.

6. Consider and act on the fiscal year 2017-2018 Proposed Budget for the City of Corinth Crime Control and 
Prevention District.

7. Consider and Act on an Inter-local Agreement between the City of Corinth and the Town of Shady Shores for 
law enforcement services.

Councilmember Glockel - Pulled item #7 for discussion. 

8. Consider and act on the site plan for Taco Bell on property zoned C-2, Commercial and legally described as 
Kensington Square Shopping Center Addition, Lot 7A, Block A, having a physical address of 4471 FM 2181 
in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas.

9. Receive a presentation, consider and act upon approving a contract with SPI Asphalt to apply a fog seal 
application to Corinth's asphalt roads.

MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to approve the Consent Agenda items. Seconded by Councilmember 
Burke.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED AS AMENDED

Councilmember Johnson - made a Friendly Amendment to remove item #7 from the Consent Agenda for discussion. 
Seconded by Councilmember Glockel

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

Councilmember Glockel - are we going to provide insurance?

Debra Walthall, Chief of Police - Shady Shores Council wanted to have more Shore patrol and we told them we 

16



could not guarantee that so they wanted to do a joint insurance of the ATV. We would insure it if our employees or 
volunteers drove it and they would insure it if theirs did. We opted for them to insure the ATV because it is housed at 
their facility and they take care of the maintenance cost and the insurance for that vehicle.  

If we determine that we need to use the ATV for something in Corinth we just make a phone call to the liaison or the 
Mayor and we can drive it. If we damage it in any way by our employees then their insurance will cover it. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve item #7 of the Consent Agenda. Seconded by 
Councilmember Garber.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

CITIZENS COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than factual 
responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be limited to 3 
minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may be taken into 
consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you desire to address the 
City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the Council as a whole and not 
to any individual member thereof.* Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City of Corinth.

There were no Citizen Comments made.

PUBLIC HEARING

10. Hold a public hearing on a proposal to consider a tax rate, which will exceed the lower of the rollback rate or 
the effective tax rate and will increase total tax revenues from properties on the tax roll in the preceding tax year 
by 2.56 percent.

Mayor Heidemann opened the Public Hearing at 7:17 P.M. No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

Bob Hart, City Manager - this is the first of two public hearings to discuss the FY 2017-2018 proposed tax rate of 
$.55000 that represents a $.003193 cent tax decrease from the FY 2016-2017 tax rate of $.58193. The second Public 
Hearing will be held on September 7, 2017 at 7:00 P.M., at the Corinth Municipal Council Chambers at 3300 Corinth 
Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The City Council will vote on both the FY 2017-2018 Proposed Budget and the proposed tax 
rate at a meeting scheduled on September 21, 2017, at 7:00 p.m., located at the Corinth Municipal Council Chambers at 
3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. Once the Public Hearing is open, the public is encouraged to express their 
views.  

The recommended budget has a recommended tax rate of $.55000 cents. The current tax rate is .58193 cents. The 
effective tax rate is $.53686 cents and the rollback is $.55032 cents. The recommendation is the $.55000. 

17



18



19



Bob Hart, City Manager - above is the long range forecast for the General Fund. The proposed budget will maintain a 
fund balance of 21.22% slightly above the policy of 20%.  Also showing is the projected fund balance over the next 3 
years.  

Bob Hart, City Manager - the new on-going services that are recommended in the proposed budget are 3 months of 
staffing for Fire Station #3 and substantially funded through a grant application that would occur early in 2018. We also 
recommend adding two police officers so we would have five officers on each shift, an adding one building inspector to 
pick up the anticipated growth in the building activity within the community. We recommend $50,000 for sidewalk to 
fill in some gaps and link some sidewalks to tie into the trial. Mowing on FM 2181 and FM 2499 once the portion 
within Corinth is open. Salary increases for public safety and general employees. The increase in the health insurance 

20



cost. The expanded EAP Program and SPAN bus program for a transportation grant to offer transportation services 
within the community for seniors.

No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

Mayor Heidemann closed the Public Hearing at 7:22 P.M.

BUSINESS AGENDA

11. Consider and act on a Unified Sign Plan for Swisher 35-E Addition Amending Plat, Lots 1R, 2A, 4, and 5, 
and Swisher 35-E Addition Replat of Lots 6R, 7R and 8R in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas. 
These lots are physically addressed at 8001, 8031, 8051, 8131, 8141, 8151, 8171 and 8201 I-35E, Corinth, 
Texas 76210.

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - The applicant is requesting a 68’ 7” tall multi-tenant, monument 
sign on Lot 4, Block A, addressed as 8171 I-35E, in order to provide visibility of the sign from I-35E.  The property is 
not visible from I-35E due to the elevation of the property with respect to the elevated freeway.  The proposed height 
and location of the monument sign will allow visitors travelling north bound and south bound along I-35E to see the 
location of the businesses from the elevated portion of the freeway.  Some of the existing signs on both sides along I-
35E in this area range in heights from 50’ to 80’ tall.

Staff has been working with the applicant, Chandler Signs, on the design of the multi-tenant, monument sign in this 
location that will also serve as a gateway or entry sign for the City of Corinth to welcome visitors.  The proposed 
location of the monument sign is nearest the southernmost entrance into our City along two major corridors, and will 
help to communicate that visitors are entering into Corinth while travelling northeast along I-35E.

The materials, finishes, design and color palette of the proposed monument sign are reflective of the Corinthian column 
architecture on our municipal building and will be used to establish “identity” for Corinth.  The same architectural 
elements and color scheme will be used on smaller monument signs to be erected in strategic entry locations into the 
City, as part of our Gateway/Entry sign strategy.  Funding has been included in the budget for 1 smaller gateway/entry 
sign in front of City Hall and 1 to be located at F.M. 2499 and Lake Sharon.

The following signs for the property are also included as part of the overall attached Unified Sign Plan:

R1:      (6) 8’ tall monument signs: (1) each to be constructed on Lots 2A, 4, 1R, 5, 6R and 7R.  The signs will be 
constructed with the same materials, finishes and color palette as the retail building on Lot 4, Block A.

R3:      (1) 8’ tall multi-tenant, monument sign to be constructed for the multi- tenant retail building on Lot 4, Block A.  
The signs will be constructed with the same materials, finishes and color palette as the retail building on Lot 4, Block A.

The Unified Sign Plan also includes attached signs on the west and south elevations of each building.

Councilmember Johnson - each one of these other individual businesses that come along they will have their own 
unique signs that they will come and ask like Popeye's, Panda Express etc. are they affected under this Unified Sign 
plan or is this for the developers building that is on lot 4?

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - the unified sign plan addresses the entire subdivided lot. The only 
thing this unified sign plan gives the ability and the authority of the applicant to do is to add to add both the west 
elevation sign and a south elevation attached sign. It does not provide changes in square footage requirements per our 
ordinance or any other ordinance requirements that are sign ordinance has. The only thing it allows them to do is have 
the attached sign on the west side and the attached sign on the south side and the Gateway sign where the retail building 
is currently being constructed today.

21



Councilmember Johnson - the franchisers or businesses that are coming in have agreed to that as far as being able to 
build in this subdivision?

Dorothy Parks, Representing Providence - all of the tenants are aware that the only deviation from the code is the 
additional wall sign on the south side of the property for each lot. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve the Unified Sign Plan as presented with the condition of the 
Chapter 380 agreement being approved by City Council. Seconded by Councilmember Harrison. 

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

12. Consider an act on a Chapter 380 Agreement between the City of Corinth and Swisher @ I-35 Corinth, LP for 
Gateway Signage into the City.

Bob Hart, City Manager - this is a proposed 380 agreement that will provide partnership between the City and the 
developer where the developer would pay for their component of the sign which would be about 15' feet and the 
remaining 10 to 12 feet of the sign the City would pay for that component that would include a Corinth Gateway sign 
so it is visible on the northbound lanes of Interstate 35E.

Councilmember Garber - are we paying the developer directly?

Bo Hart, City Manager - It is set up to where the developer is paying 100% of the sign and then we will pay the 
developer for our cost as a reimbursement after it is finished. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve the Chapter 380 Agreement between the City of Corinth and 
Swisher @ I-35 Corinth, LP for Gateway Signage into the City. Seconded by Councilmember Garber.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: Johnson
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

13. Consider and act on an Ordinance Amending the Corinth Code of Ordinances, Chapters 93 and 150, Adopting 
the 2015 International Construction Codes With Certain Appendices and Local Amendments and Standards, 
Including the Building Code; Residential Building Code; Plumbing Code; Fuel Gas Code; Mechanical Code; 
Energy Code; Existing Building Code; Fire Code; Property Maintenance Code; and 2014 National Electrical 
Code.

Bob Hart, City Manager - the adoption of these codes is encouraged from a regional approach so that all the cities in 
the DFW area are following the same code and this will make it easier for builders as they work across city lines that 
they are working on the same set of codes. This is included in our building codes and we are asking that you incorporate 
that language in the fire code as well. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve the Ordinance amending Corinth Code of Ordinances, 
Chapters 93 and 150, Adopting the 2015 International Construction Codes With Certain Appendices and Local 
Amendments and Standards, Including the Building Code; Residential Building Code; Plumbing Code; Fuel Gas 
Code; Mechanical Code; Energy Code; Existing Building Code; Fire Code; Property Maintenance Code; and 2014 
National Electrical Code with the inclusion of the local amendments to the 2015 International Fire Code. Seconded by 

22



Councilmember Harrison.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

14. Consider and act on revisions to the Wireless Services (Small Cells) Design Manual.

Bob Hart, City Manager - the Council established standards for the small cell services about a month ago. As a result 
of some legislative changes there are revisions that have been incorporated and that is the reason for bringing this to you 
tonight. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to approve the revisions to the Wireless Services (Small Cells) Design 
Manual. Seconded by Councilmember Burke.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or 
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in 
accordance with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that 
an item be added as a business item to any future agenda.

Councilmember Glockel - would like to have a future meeting to discuss and review the standing water on 
private property and the city's obligation to maintain.

There was no Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of 
the above agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated 
litigation; and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with 
chapter 551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an 
open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with 
a third person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 

23



governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, 
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to 
a business prospect.

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City 
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its 
Attorney on any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION 
ITEMS. ADJOURN

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the Special Session at 7:43 P.M.

AYES: All

Meeting adjourned.

Approved by Council on the day of 2017.

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

24



   
    CONSENT ITEM    3.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: Fire Hosue #1 Lease
Submitted For: Curtis Birt, Chief  Submitted By: Curtis Birt, Chief
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on Second Lease Renewal for Fire House #1 between Corinth and the City of Lake Dallas

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Since 2008 City of Corinth has leased Fire House #1 from Lake Dallas for use under the Fire Services Interlocal
Agreement between the Lake Cities.  This second lease renewal is for a term of 4 year with a 1% annual increase as
discussed during talks for interlocal.  Cost:   2017-18     44,596.50
           2018-19     45,042.46
           2019-20     45,492.88
           2020-21     45,947.80 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval. 

Attachments
2nd Lease Extension 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    4.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: EDC Appointments
Submitted For: Bob Hart, City Manager  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on nominations, appointments, resignations and removal of members from Corinth Economic
Development Corporation,

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Corinth Economic Development Corporation is a nonprofit corporation managed by a board of directors to
promote economic development for the City of Corinth.  It is organized exclusively on behalf of the City for the
public purposes of the promotion and development of new and expanded business enterprises to provide and
encourage employment in the furtherance of public welfare. The Corporation shall have and exercise all of the
rights, powers, privileges, authority and functions given by the general laws of Texas to nonprofit corporations by
the Texas Nonprofit Corporation Act, Tex. Civ. Stat. Ann. Art. 1396-1.01 et. seq., and the additional powers as
provided in Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979.
 
CEDC Bylaws; (Article IV Board of Directors)
 
Section 04.01 Powers, Number and Term of Office provides as follows:

The property and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by the Board of Directors and subject
to the restrictions imposed by law, the Articles of Incorporation, and these Bylaws, The Board shall exercise all of
the powers of the Corporation,
 
The Board shall consist of seven (7) Directors each of whom shall be appointed by the City Council of the City of
Corinth, as provided in Article VII of the Corinth Economic Development Corporation Articles of Incorporation.
 
Each member of the Board of Directors shall serve a two (2) year term, or until his/her successor is appointed,
unless sooner removed or resigned. Each Director shall be eligible for reappointment. No Director shall serve more
than two (2) consecutive terms excluding the initial term, if less than two (2) years. Any vacancy occurring on the
Board shall be filled by appointment of the City Council, to hold office until the expiration of the term of the
vacating member. Unless otherwise provided, terms shall expire on September 30 and begin on October 1.

The City Council of the City of Corinth shall recommend to the Board the person to serve as President. All officers
shall be elected by and subject to removal from office at the will of and at any time by a vote of a majority of the
Board.

The Directors constituting the first Board shall be those Directors named in the Articles of Incorporation. The
respective initial terms of the Board are set forth in the Articles of Incorporation. Thereafter, each successor
member of the Board shall be appointed and serve for two (2) years or until his or her successor is appointed as
hereafter provided.
 
Any Director may be removed from office by the City Council at any time.

Section 04.05 Attendance provides as follows:
38



Regular attendance is required at all meetings. Two (2) consecutive unexcused absences from regular scheduled
meetings of the Board shall constitute cause for replacement of a Director. An unexcused absence is one not
approved by the Chair.

Section 05.07 Election of Officers provides as follows:

The Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary shall be elected from among the members of the Board. The Treasurer may be
an employee of the City, appointed by the Finance Director of the City of Corinth to oversee the finances of the
Corporation.
  

Economic Development Corporation
Place 1 Don Glockel, Council Representative   September 30, 2018
Place 2 Lowell Johnson, Council Representative, President Expire Term September 30, 2017
Place 3 David Burnett   September 30, 2018
Place 4 Jerry Blazewicz Eligible for reappointment September 30, 2017
Place 5 Wade May Expired Term September 30, 2017
Place 6 Mike Amason, Vice President Expired Term September 30, 2017
Place 7 Tina Henderson, Secretary   September 30, 2018

New Applicants
 
A.            Bradley Hinson
B.            Grady E. Ray
C.            Steve Holzwarth
D.            Eric Wiser

RECOMMENDATION
Recommendation/Appointment is at Council’s discretion.

39



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    5.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: Lake Sharon Estates Phase 3 Trail Dedication 
Submitted For: Cody Collier, Director  Submitted By: Cody Collier, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the trail system land dedication for the property located on 55.995 acres all or portions of
property legally described Tracts 1C and 1D out of the BBB & CRR Survey, County Abstract 190, Tract 1 out of
the S Kephart Survey, County Abstract 721 and Tract 1D out of the GW McGlothlin Survey, County Abstract 888
in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas.  This property is located on the south of proposed Lake Sharon Drive
extension and east of FM 2499.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The applicant is proposing to develop seventy nine (79) single family, residential lots which requires the dedication
of a park, trail, money in lieu, or a combination thereof per Section 3.05.10 of the Unified Development Code.  The
option for parkland or trail dedication requires that the area of dedication be at a rate of one (1) acre for each 50
dwelling units. Money in lieu rates are calculated at a rate of $550 per lot, to a sum of $43,450 for this development.

The applicant is proposing dedicating approximately .75 acres for the trail that includes 10' wide hardscape and
connect from Lake Sharon Drive around the pond, across the dam and connecting to the existing sidewalk located
on Indian Lake Drive. This will make the necessary pedestrian access for connectivity as desired in the Trails
Master Plan.  While the land dedication is only about 45% of the dedication required to meet the one (1) acre per 50
dwelling units, the applicant is proposing improvements to the property which are beneficial to the City of Corinth. 

The applicant has a construction cost of $180,000 for the 10' wide trail, but has not calculated costs for the other
amenities it will install and maintain.  The applicant proposes to pave the 10' trail with concrete in its entirety,
install one (1) park bench, install one (1) shade structure (gazebo styled), dedicate the 10' trail system as a
permanent public pedestrian access easement, and agrees the Lake Sharon Phase 3 HOA will be responsible to
maintain all dedicated land and property, including repair and replacement.

The proposed development (Lake Sharon Phase 3) will require rezoning to a planned development and the property
to be platted. However, Section 3.05.10 of the Unified Development Code requires Council action for parkland
dedication prior to submission of the rezoning and platting.  The rezoning for the development will be on a future
Council agenda.

RECOMMENDATION
The proposed trail system land dedication will help provide recreational opportunities for both this development as
well as the single-family residential developments in this area. The applicant's proposed 10' wide concrete paved
trail, gazebo style shade structure and pedestrian bench (as detailed in the applicants Zoning Concept Rendering)
will also provide the desired connectivity for the City's trail system and other public parks within the City. 
Therefore, Staff recommends that Council accept the trail system land dedication with the provision of HOA
maintenance of the dedicated pedestrian access easement and all related infrastructure.  This will be subject to
zoning and plat/engineering approvals.  The land dedicated will remain property of Lake Sharon Phase 3 HOA and
will provide access for public use.

Attachments
Trails Master Plan 

40



Lake Sharon 3 conceptual plan 

41



!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

DENTON

LAKE DALLAS

SHADY SHORES

HICKORY CREEK

Big Sandy Park

Big Sandy Park

Hickory Creek Park
Pilot Knoll Park

Willow Grove Park

Willow Grove Park

Corinth Community Park

Oakmont Country Club

Oakmont Country Club

Oakmont Country Club

Fairview Park

Meadowview Park

Thousand Oaks Park

Lake Shore Park

Meadows Oaks Park

Kensington Park

Eagle Pass Park

Mulholland Park

Windsor Ridge Park

The Knoll & Briar Glen Park

Creek Side Addn

Creek Side Addn

The Woods Community Center & Park

Creek Side Addn
Creek Side Addn

Future

CORINTH ELEMENTARY

LAKE DALLAS PRIMARY

Hawk Elementary School

LAKE DALLAS ELEMENTARY

CROWNOVER MIDDLE SCHOOL

LAKE DALLAS HIGH SCHOOL

LAKE DALLAS INTERMEDIATE

GUYER, JOHN H HIGH SCHOOL

LAKE DALLAS MIDDLE SCHOOL

NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COLLEGE

Creek

Hickory Creek

Veal Springs Branch

Bryant Branch

Stream

Carter Branch

Br
ya

nt 
Br

an
ch

Br
ya

nt 
Br

an
ch

Bryant Branch

Lewisville Lake

Lewisville Lake

Pond

Lewisville Lake

Lake Sharon

Pond

Horseshoe Lake

Pond

Veal Springs Branch

Hickory Creek

Pond

Lake

Pond

Pond

Bryant Branch

Pond

Pond

Lewisville Lake

Lake Sharon

Lake

Cooper Creek

Pond

Pond

Pond

Hickory Creek Park Ponds

Lewisville Lake

Denton ISD

Lake Dallas ISD

Argyle ISD

I 35E

FM 2181

INTERSTATE 35

SHADY SHORES RD

PO
ST

 O
AK

 D
R

OA
KM

ON
T D

R

DOBBS RD

FM
24

99
 (F

utu
re)

PARKRIDGE DR

TURBEVILLE RD

SH
AD

Y S
HO

RE
S 

DR

LA
KE

VI
EW

 D
R

FRITZ LN

CIELO LN

HUNDLEY DR

CHURCH DR

MEADOWVIEW DR

CO
RN

ITH
 LO

OP

LAKE SHARON DR

NOWLIN RD

LEA DR

DENTON DR

OVERLY DR

REDBUD

QU
AI

L R
UN

 D
R

ASH LN

MAIN ST

CO
RI

NT
H 

ST

OLD HWY 77

PINE HILLS LN

OLD
 ALTO

N RD

CLIFF OAKS DR

FORTY LN

WALTON DR

ROBINSON RD

SWISHER RD

OA
K H

ILL
 D

R

FAIRVIEW DR

LEWIS DR

VINTAGE DR

SILVERMEADOW LN

STEMMONS FWY

GA
RR

IS
ON

 R
D

LAKE

CAIN ST

SHAHAN DR

OA
K L

K

BE
RR

Y 
LN

OLD US HWY 77

BOWIE LN

PARADISE CV

MEADOW OAKS DR

BL
UE

 B
ON

NE
TT

NORTHLAKE

SH
AR

ON
 D

R

PEAKVIEW DR

LA
KE

SH
OR

E 
RD

BLAKE ST

STATE SCHOOL RD

BOWIE

GA
RZ

A R
D

PR
IN

CE
 D

R

TE
XA

S 
OA

K T
RL

BRETT RD

CUSTER DR

POSTWOOD DR

MONTSERRAT RD

ARDGLASS TRL

DAISY

EXIT 458

SHADY REST LN

WINSTON DR

PIP
ER

 D
R

P R 0504

RYAN RD

RIVER OAK WAY

CREEKSIDE DR

WEMBLY

VIS
TA

VI
EW

 D
R

THOMPSON DR

HA
RV

AR
D 

DR

TEXAS DR

EXIT 459

SCENIC
CLARK DR

FO
RD

ACORN BND

BIRCH LN

HAYLING WAY

HAVEN DR

OLD ALTON DR

VILLA CT

ME
AD

OW
BR

OO
K 

ST

TO
W

ER
 R

ID
GE

 D
R

BALLYCASTLE LN

KIR
BY

 D
R

ALDERBROOK DR

BL
UE

 JA
Y D

R

RED OAK DR

DRISKELL 
DR

OAKWOOD CIR

AN
DO

VE
R 

LN

MONTECITO DR

DALTON DR

AD
DI

SO
N 

ST

BERKSHIRE LN

CREEK HL

PEMBROOK ST

AV
ON

 D
R

SOUTHLAKE DR

NIGHTINGALE LN

SHORE DR

BR
AN

DI
 LN

LAKEWOOD DR

COMANCHE DR

CLIFFVIEW DR

CL
AY

 TR
L

KIN
G 

MA
NO

R 
DR

COPPER CANYON RD

BRAZOS DR

EL
LA

RD
 D

R

PO
IN

T V
IST

A R
D

YE
LL

OW
ST

ON
E 

LN

CHAUCER DR

BR
IAR

OA
KS

 D
R

FAIRWAY DR

MARKET ST

SUSSEX WAY

FALCON DR

BURL S
T

SYCAMORE BND

KIL
N 

DR

CROCKETT D
R

CHRISTIAN PKWY ZA
CH

AR
Y D

R

AS
HWOOD LN

TIMBERVIEW DR

LEATHERWOOD LN

MUSTANG TRL

GLEN RHEA DR

JANET

FORESTWOOD DR

PECAN ST

HOWARD DR

LANTANA

SK
YV

IE
W

 D
R

CREEKEDGE CT
LAKE HAVEN DR

HONDUE

CR
AW

FO
RD

 D
R

OA
KV

IEW
 LN

PRIMROSE

GO
TC

HE
R 

AV
E

P R 0503

BR
OO

KS
HI

RE
 R

UN

SO
MM

ER
SE

T D
R

CENTENARY DR

RIVERVIEW DR

SH
AH

AN
 LN

WILDWOOD LN

ME
AD

OW
S 

DRYALE DR

BE
CK

 AV
E

QU
EE

NS
 C

T

MYERS DR

DE
ER

PA
TH

 R
D

LYNCHBURG DR

WI
LS

ON
 S

T

OAKWOOD ST

SPARTA DR

HICKORY CREEK RD

HILLSIDE DR

CA
HI

LL
 W

AY

TREE HOUSE LN

WHEELER DR

TORI OAK TRL
LE

ED
S 

CT

WOODSIDE LN

WILDWOOD ST

DU
ND

EE
 D

R

GLENVIEW DR

LONG TAIL TRL

LAKE VISTA ST

HA
RB

OR
 G

RO
VE

 LN

RA
NK

IN
 D

R

MALLARD DR PA
RK

VI
EW

 D
R

MACBEY DR

BOULDER DR

BR
AM

PT
ON

 D
R

BROOKVIEW DR

JEAN ST

GLEN AERIE LN

NICK ST

KNOLL RIDGE DR

MISTY GLN

KINGSWOOD DR

CALADIUM DR

RUSSETT LN

SE
RE

ND
IPI

TY
 H

ILL
S 

TR
L

WAVERLY RD

STADIUM DR

REDWOOD DR

CA
RP

EN
TE

R 
ST

WO
OD

VI
EW

 LN

MI
LL

WO
OD

 D
R

FR
OS

T L
N

PALOMINO CT

DU
CH

ES
S C

T

REGINA DR

PR
IN

CE
SS

 C
T

GL
EN

 M
AN

OR
 RD

FAIR OAKS CIR

RA
VI

NI
A D

R

OA
KC

RE
ST

 S
T

BARTON SPRINGS DR

OAK RIDGE DR

SHORE ST

MASON AVE

WHITEHALL DR

OV
ER

LA
KE

 D
R

WINDMERE CIR

OA
KL

EY
 D

R

FONDREN RD

TH
OU

SA
ND

 O
AK

S D
R

LIVE OAK DR

PO
ND

 S
T

JESSE WAY

LA
KE

SH
OR

E 
LN

FIELDWOOD DR

CO
UN

TE
SS

 C
T

MA
YF

IE
LD

 C
IR

SPRINGTREE LN

SPRINGTREE RD

FO
RE

ST
VI

EW
 D

R

TA
YL

OR
 C

IR

PA
RK

HA
VE

N 
DR

LAKERIDGE ST

SAINT JOHNS DR

SUNFLOWER DR

SHADOW CREST DR

AV
IAT

OR
 W

AY

TIMBER RIDGE CIR

BLU
EWOOD LN

VALLEY VIEW DR

BRIARWOOD

WICKERSHAM LN

MO
UN

TA
IN

VI
EW

 D
R

FO
RE

ST
VI

EW
 R

D

EXIT 461

COPPER LEAF DR

COE RD

CHURCH ST

OWEN OAKS DR

ATHENS DR

CASSIDY LN

BRONCO CIR

CREEK CROSSING DR

WI
ND

IN
G 

OA
K 

BN
D

PENINSULA BND

GE
RO

NIM
O 

DR

MISSION HILLS LN

BA
RR

EL
 S

TR
AP

 LN

GRASSY GLEN DR

BRIDGESTONE DR

LOCHWOOD CIR

WESTHEIMER RD

CHERRY LN

CEDAR ELM DR

HI
DD

EN
 SP

RI
NG

S 
DR

KENILW
ORTH DR

INDIAN BLANKET

VIE
W

CR
ES

T D
R

MORNING GLORY DR

OLIN

HIGH POINTE DR

PARKSIDE

OA
K C

RE
EK

 DR

CEDAR CREEK LN

EXIT 457B

TO
PA

NG
A C

AN
YO

N 
DR

CHAPEL PL

JO
NE

S 
ST

RE
DB

UD
 TR

L

EXIT 460

MANCHESTER WAY

FOREST GLN

WHITNEY DR

SU
MM

IT 
RI

DG
E 

DR

ATTAWAY CV

HUDSON STWARWICK DR

AN
DREW

 CT

REGENT CT

FO
RE

ST
 G

LE
N 

DR

BIRDWOOD CIR

SILKTREE CT

LAKESIDE MNR

SH
AD

Y O
AK

S 
CI

RWATERVIEW
 LN

PALACE CT

BL
AC

K 
WA

LN
UT

 D
R

RYE RD

PAINT BRUSH

TR
IN

ITY
 TE

R

POPLAR CT

ADDISON PL

GLADE

RAMP

MEMORIAL DR

SH
EP

AR
D 

LN

ROBINSON RD

EXIT 459

JESSE WAY

I 35E

SWISHER RD

HA
VE

N 
DR

MEADOWVIEW DR

EXIT 460

CO
RI

NT
H 

ST

INTERSTATE 35

INTERSTATE 35

STEMMONS FWY

FALCON DR

JESSE WAY

T0
6

T21

T0
8

T04

T30
T11

T43

T24

T4
4

T22

T45

T42

T10
T29

T37

T4
8

T46

T38

T07
T09

T0
3

T14

T02

T3
3

T23

T47

T55

T20

T1
2

T3
5

T17

T40

T15

T13

T01

T34
T28

T16

T19

T31

T05

T5
2

T49

T32

T36

T61

T50

T18

T5
2

T4
8

T5
2

T30

T52

T1
4

T52

T57

T25

T5
3

T51

T26

T53

T5
3

B0
1

B10 B11

B39

B34

B33

B42

B37

B32.2

B3
2.1

B4
6

B63

B47

B4
0

B43

B1
5

B08

B13

B30

B0
6

B3
8

B0
3

B09

B2
3

B22

B41

B05

B02

B31.1

B04

B0
7

B20

B12

B18

B21

B0
2

B05

B0
5

B04

B39

B1
2

B0
2

B20

Pavillion

Old Alton Bridge

OLD ALTON CHURCH

Corinth City Hall

LAKE CITIES PUBLIC LIBRARY

Crownover Recreation Center

BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF DENTON

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1MilesFinal Recomendations
Bicycle System

±

Legend
On-Street
Existing Conditions

Bike Friendly
Experienced Bicyclist
Inaccesible to Bicyclist

Trails (Hard Surface)
Existing
Programmed
Planned

! ! ! ! ! Proposed
Trails (Soft Surface)

Existing
Programmed

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Proposed
Roads

Freeway
Major Artierial
Arterial
Collector
Streets

Landmarks
!( Community Facilities
¹º Schools

School Property
ISD Boundry
City Limits

Parks
Public
Undeveloped
Private
Private Undeveloped

City of Corinth, Texas
Non-Motorized System Master Plan

42



43



   
    BUSINESS ITEM    6.        

City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 10/19/2017  
Title: Chapter 380 Economic Development Incentive Agreement
Submitted For: Jason Alexander, Director  Submitted By: Jason Alexander, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a Chapter 380 Economic Development Incentive Agreement between the City of Corinth,
Texas, the Corinth Economic Development Corporation and 6Q Hospitality, L.L.C. to construct and operate a hotel
and conference center in the City of Corinth, Texas.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Over the last few years, the Corinth Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) informally engaged Marriott
International, Inc. to develop a hotel and related amenities in Corinth (City). A leading global hospitality services
brand, the CEDC recognized opportunities for Marriott International, Inc. to operate successfully within the Corinth
sub-market, stimulate future development and complement existing businesses. Formal discussions to develop a
hotel and related amenities in Corinth materialized in 2016, with Marriott International, Inc. selecting Fairfield Inn
and Suites as the brand most appropriate for the Corinth sub-market.

Having been awarded the Fairfield Inn and Suites brand, Jay Patel (6Q Hospitality, L.L.C.) submitted an
application requesting economic development incentives from the City and the CEDC pursuant to Chapter 380 of
the Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 380) and the City of Corinth Chapter 380 Economic Development
Incentives Policies and Procedures (Policy) to construct and operate the hotel. After discussion and consideration,
the CEDC Board of Directors determined that the project was consistent with the community's economic
development efforts, goals and objectives, and directed staff to negotiate an economic development incentive
agreement pursuant to Chapter 380 and the Policy.

This Chapter 380 Economic Development Incentive Agreement (Agreement) is intended to commence on City
Council's date of approval (i.e., the Effective Date, if approved by City Council) and expire on December 31, 2029.
The Agreement, as proposed, obligates Patel to: 

Construct and operate a hotel branded as a Fairfield Inn and Suites with at least 88 rooms and 1,700 square
feet of conference space on or before October 1, 2020.
Construct the hotel and conference center at an elevated quality in which exterior construction will consist
primarily of fired brick, granite, manufactured stone, marble and/or natural stone. The conference center will
have state of the art audio and visual systems as well as standard interior finishes of high quality.
Ensure that the total assessed value of the land ($1.2 million) and the building improvements ($8.8 million) is
at least $10 million as determined by the Denton County Appraisal District by January 1, 2021.
Create at least 22 jobs that are not seasonal, and provided at least 30 hours of employment per week on or
before January 31, 2021; and will endeavor with commercially reasonable diligence to recruit and hire
residents of Corinth and the surrounding communities to such jobs.
Advertise and market the hotel and conference center as being geographically located in Corinth rather than
any other proper geographic name.
At the request of the City or the CEDC, provide access to the conference center for up to four (4) times per
month, at no expense to either and, also at the request of the City or the CEDC, provide up to four (4) room
nights at a corporate rate for public purposes and economic development use as designated by the City or the
CEDC through the end of the Agreement.

The City, as proposed, is obligated under the Agreement to refund 100 percent of the sales and use taxes collected
by the City, CEDC, and CCD (totaling 2%) under a Texas Direct Payment Permit acquired by Patel prior to the

44



issuance of building permits on construction materials, equipment, fixtures, furniture, inventory, supplies and other
inventory material subject to taxation by Chapter 151 of the Texas Tax Code. Moreover, the Agreement obligates
the City to refund 75 percent of the hotel occupancy taxes generated by the hotel and conference center to be used
only for activities allowed by Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code. The refunds, collectively referred to as the
"Grant Payments" are proposed to be paid to Patel by March 31 of the calendar year immediately following the
calendar year in which such taxes were generated. Any taxes generated in calendar year 2018 will be included in
Grant Payments for calendar year 2019. The first such Grant Payment is anticipated to be made on March 31, 2020
and is anticipated to consist of a refund of sales and use taxes, provided that Patel is in full compliance with the
terms and conditions of the Agreement.

The CEDC, as proposed, is obligated under the Agreement to reimburse Patel in the amount of $150,000.00 for
impact fees and expenses, costs and fees incurred to obtain all permits, licenses and inspections necessary to
construct and operate the hotel and conference center. The CEDC is obligated to make such payment within 30
calendar days of Patel submitting copies of all receipts for such amounts and the permanent certificate of occupancy.

The Agreement is purely performance-based, and requires Patel to meet or exceed specific goals. Should City
Council approve the Agreement, the forthcoming presence of a hotel and conference center will serve as catalyst
for other infill and redevelopment projects, while introducing the latest reiteration of the Fairfield Inn and Suites
between Denton and Lewisville. Further, the hotel will expand the tax base and create new jobs. While the
agreement does not require Patel to construct the hotel at a specific location in Corinth, it is expected that Patel will
acquire title to property at Millennium in the immediate future, and the hotel will be constructed and operated from
within that development.

RECOMMENDATION
The Corinth Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) met in Special Session on October 9, 2017, and the
Board of Directors recommended approval of the Chapter 380 Economic Development Incentive Agreement
(Agreement) based on a recommendation of approval by staff as outlined in the City of Corinth Chapter 380
Economic Development Incentives Policies and Procedures (Policy). The Board of Directors of the CEDC and staff
recommend City Council approve the Agreement.

45


	Agenda
	AI_888_Council Member Don Glockel Agenda Request for Standing Water
	AI_887_Proclamation
	ATT_Proclamation
	AI_883_August 24, 2017 Workshop Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_884_August 24, 2017 Special Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_890_Fire Hosue _1 Lease
	ATT_2nd Lease Extension
	AI_885_EDC Appointments
	AI_886_Lake Sharon Estates Phase 3 Trail Dedication 
	ATT_Trails Master Plan
	ATT_Lake Sharon 3 conceptual plan
	AI_889_Chapter 380 Economic Development Incentive Agreement



